
 1 

Grand Valley Metro Council 

Executive Committee Meeting 

 

Thursday, October 15, 2009 

12:00 pm 

 

Grand Valley Metro Council 

678 Front Ave. NW, Suite 200 

Grand Rapids, MI 

 

 

MEETING NOTES 
 

Present 

Jim Buck        City of Grandville 

Daryl Delabbio       Kent County 

Cindy Fox        Cascade Township 

Jim Miedema        Jamestown Township 

Rick Root        City of Kentwood 

Alan Vanderberg       Ottawa County 

Rob VerHeulen       City of Walker 

 

Absent 

George Heartwell       City of Grand Rapids 

Don Hilton, Sr.       Gaines Township 

Cy Moore        Council Treasurer 

 

Other 

Andy Bowman       Grand Valley Metro Council 

Leon Branderhorst       Grand Valley Metro Council 

Abed Itani        Grand Valley Metro Council 

Gayle McCrath       Grand Valley Metro Council 

Don Stypula        Grand Valley Metro Council 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

The meeting was called to order at 12:15 pm by Chair Jim Buck. 

 

 

 

2. Approval of Minutes 

 

MOTION – Approval of GVMC Executive Committee Minutes of August, 2009.  

MOVE – Root.  SUPPORT - Vanderberg.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 



 2 

3. Open House 

 

Jim Buck remarked that when the GVMC offices were first moved, it was anticipated there 

would be an open house to show off the new office space.  However, with the economy 

such that it is, it wouldn’t be prudent to spend money on the event and it would be difficult 

to find a sponsor.  At this time it would be best to forgo the open house. 

 

4. Interview 

 

Jim Buck discussed the WZZM interview on consolidation and shared services.   

 

Don Stypula apologized for letting his intrigue with the concept lead to his overzealous 

comments. 

 

Rick Root stated he felt that WZZM set out to make the news story rather than report it.  

They misrepresented what he said to them.  Consolidation / cooperation is not the golden 

goose which will save taxpayers a lot of money.  There are also many pieces of legislation 

which would need to be changed to allow this. 

 

Much discussion ensued regarding the issue. 

 

Daryl Delabbio reported Kent County has a policy of notifying County Commissioners 

whenever an interview is expected to be covered either on the air or in the press. 

 

Rob VerHeulen said this is a good policy and suggested GVMC do it also. 

 

Don Stypula stated in the future he will notice everyone when he has a live interview and 

will record it and forward it on to everyone. 

 

5. Legislative 

 

Don Stypula stated there was nothing new to report in Lansing.  It was reported the 

Governor was surprised the Senate would release the six budget bills as she indicated she 

intended to use the line item veto. 

 

Rick Root added the Governor was reportedly surprised she couldn’t use the line item veto 

to rewrite the budget.  Vetoing an item would just take the item and funding out of the 

budget entirely. 

 

Don Stypula reported use of the line item veto to move funding goes back to the Engler 

administration.  Engler used the administrative board to veto certain line items and move 

funding to his priorities within cost centers.  

 

Al Vanderberg commented the legislature and the Chamber of Commerce needs to forget 

about issues that are not going to move and focus on collaboration and consolidation.  They 

also need to fix the business tax.  Government doesn’t have to start thinking like private 

business.  In many instances it works better than private business and its mission is entirely 

different. 

 



 3 

Daryl Delabbio stated WMSA was convening a meeting to review a survey of over 200 

collaborative local government endeavors. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding consolidation and cooperation. 

 

Don Stypula reported there was significant disconnect between us (and this information) 

and our legislators and constituents.  He asked if there was something the Metro Council 

could do to improve the understanding of these issues by the legislature and constituents. 

 

Al Vanderberg stated the information the WMSA is collecting should be used as a tool for 

talking points with legislators to show what is already done and as a preview of what can 

be done if we get additional help. 

 

Don Stypula said he would like to discuss at the GVMC Board Meeting what the Metro 

Council can do to help. 

 

6. Other 

 

Daryl Delabbio stated at this time the dues for the Metro Council and REGIS were out of 

the budget for Kent County. 

 

Jim Buck asked if we should speak to our county commissioners.  

 

Daryl Delabbio indicated the Kent County Finance Committee meets on the 1
st
 and 3

rd
 

Tuesday of the month.  Others are lobbying them for their areas of funding. 

 

Rick Root stated Kentwood is having similar budget troubles and has to cut out an even 

larger amount from their budget.  At this time GVMC and REGIS are still in their budget, 

but who knows what will happen in the future. 

 

 

7. Next Meeting – November 19, 2009 

 

 

8. Adjournment – 1:20 

 

MOTION – To Adjourn.  MOVE – Delabbio.  SUPPORT – Root.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 


